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A Brief History of Kinmount Railway Station aka The Station 

The Station was, and still is, the centre of 
the village of Kinmount. Centre means eco-
nomic, cultural, and geographical centre. 
Even today, 50 years after the last train in 
town, it still is the heart of the village. It has 
a history so vast and fascinating, it trans-
cends the story of an ordinary building. 
The Station was built in 1876. The official 
opening on November 30, 1876 was duly 
recorded in detail by the Lindsay Post news-
paper. A special train was sent from Lind-
say, full of dignitaries, to officiate at the 
ceremony. The local school was closed so 
the children could be part of this historical 
event. The arrival of the Victoria Railway 
was to change the history of the whole com-
munity, and everybody could sense it! The 
village boomed from 50 residents to 500 in 
the next few years. The struggling little 
hamlet of Kinmount drew business from all 
the surrounding communities and cemented 
Kinmount as the hub of the area. Let the 
good times roll! 
The Station itself was built by a Kirkfield 
contractor named William MacKenzie. He 
also built the Fenelon Falls station (still 
standing today as well). Mackenzie had a 
reputation for quality work. His buildings 
have stood the test of time. This contract 
was his first foray into the world of railway 
work. Mackenzie seemed to enjoy the rail-
way business, because over the next 5 dec-
ades he built an empire that garnered him 
the nick name: The Railway King of Cana-
da. From his first humble business (the 
Shoefly Store), he founded the transconti-
nental Canadian Northern Railway 
(forerunner of the CNR) and became the 
richest man in Canada. He was knighted by 
King Edward VII. Sir William, as he was 
called locally, helped build the CPR, started 
the Toronto Transit Commission and lived 
in mansions, both at Kirkfield and in Toron-
to.  
Despite his fame and fortune, Sir William 
had a soft spot for his home area. Many a 
local man found a railway job with the 
ñEldon Reserveò, his private railway crew 
who worked all over the country. Sir Wil-
liam was so famous and respected, he was 
ñofferedò the position of Prime Minister of 
Canada after the death of Sir John A Mac-
donald! He refused the honour. Local leg-
end has it the Kinmount Station is haunted 
by the ghost of Sir William. On at least 5 

occasions the village of Kinmount was 
destroyed by fire. The Station, right in the 
heart of town, never suffered a scorched 
shingle! In the Great Fire of 1942, build-
ings on all sides of the Station were totally 
destroyed, but the Station was left un-
touched amid a sea of desolation. Well 
done Sir William! 
Kinmount had not one railway line, but two 
lines! So successful was the Victoria Rail-
way, a second line, the Irondale, Bancroft 
& Ottawa Railway aka the Great IB&O, 
was built from Howland Junction (just 
north of the village) to Bancroft. This 
quirky line was nicknamed the Great IOU 
and was bankrupt after a few decades. Sir 
William of the CNR kindly bought the line 
and ran it at a loss, just because he had a 
soft spot for the area. Little remains of the 
Great IB&O today, except for the small 
waiting room at Howland Junction. In 
2012, the residents of the community de-
cided to move the badly dilapidated How-
land Junction Station from its home down 
the line to Kinmount to nestle besides its 
larger cousin, the Kinmount Station. Upon 
further review, it was found the old IB&O 
station was too far decayed to be moved. 
So a new ñimitation stationò was built at 
the Kinmount site to honour the history of 
the two railway lines. 
When the Victoria Railway was started in 
1874, a labour shortage plagued the build-
ers. So a group of 360 Icelandic immi-
grants, newly arrived, were recruited as 
labourers. They were shipped to Kinmount 
to work on the northern section. Their 10 
month sojourn in the village was not a suc-
cessful story, and they left en-mass for 
Gimili Manitoba in 1875. Their ancestors 
dwell there today. All that remains of their 
first adventure in Canada is a plaque and 
sculpture nuzzled against the Station at 
Kinmount. 
The Victoria Railway was a financially 
success venture, linking the communities of 
Haliburton and Northern Victoria County 
to the outside world. Freight volume grew 
so much, an extension to the baggage room 
was added after a few years. Numerous 
sidings branched off the rail yards to serve 
local saw mills, businesses and the general 
public. Four trains a day stopped at the 
Station during its heyday. All passenger 
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Friends and Neighbours: Ghost Villages along Muskoka Road Part II 

Kinmount Gazette Kinmount Committee for Planning and Economic Development 

The next village along the Muskoka 
Road was Utterson. Utterson became a 
major town along the Muskoka Road, 
eclipsing Faulkenburg, Side roads led 
to the Parry Sound Road to the west 
and Port Sydney on Maryôs Lake to the 
west. Port Sydney was on the north 
branch of the Muskoka River and had 
steamboat service! But Utterson had a 
railway station and enjoyed prosperity 
as a result. Utterson contained 3 gen-
eral stores as well as the usual church-
es, a school and blacksmith. The cur-
rent Highway 11 passes just east of 
Utterson and the Muskoka Road con-
nection was abandoned. Business was 
drawn away to nearby Huntsville and 
Port Sydney grew as a tourist village 
leaving Utterson a shell of its former 
self. 
Today the village has one big store, 
oddly a Greenhawk Horse supply store, 
a post office and several churches. 

The Muskoka Colonization Road ran 
from Washago to Lake Nipissing. It was 
the earliest colonization road that ser-
viced the settlement of Muskoka and 
Parry Sound Districts in the 1860s. A 
number of settlements grew up along the 
Road in the 1800s. After a few decades, 
the railways and changes in the course of 
the Road led to many of these settle-
ments being abandoned. This is the story 
of these ghost villages. 
 
Falkenburg 
By 1862, the Muskoka Road had reached 
Bracebridge and wound its way north 
toward the future site of Huntsville. A 
few miles north of Bracebridge, the 
Muskoka Road met the Parry Sound 
Road which branched northeast towards 
Parry Sound. The village of Falkenburg 
grew up around this major road junction. 
A post office was established in 1863. 
The village contained 2 hotels, a post 
office, a general store, blacksmith Angli-
can church and a sawmill: 
standard businesses for a 
pioneer crossroads village. 
In the late 1870s, the North-
ern Junction Railway ar-
rived at Faulkenburg, bring-
ing a new era of prosperity. 
But the Railway also 
changed the travel pattern 
of the settlement. The sta-
tion was located a few miles 
east of the old road junc-
tion. So the village moved 
to the railway station, and 
the original village became 
a ghost town. The railway 
also doomed this section of 
the Muskoka Road, and the 
Road was abandoned north 
of Falkenburg. The 
new village was 
called Falkenburg 
Junction. Later, the 
current Highway 11 
replaced the Mus-
koka Road.  
All that remains 
today is the old 
Anglican Church, 
and the railway line 
and a side road 
linking Falkenburg 
Junction to High-
way 11 a few miles 
to the east. 
 
Utterson 

Clockwise from top: Utterson Railway 
Station; Union Hotel at Faulkenburg 
Junction. A rather primitive hotel; 
Faulkenburg Station; Main Street 
Faulkenburg in its heyday 
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Read The Gazette in colour at kinmount.ca 

 

The Galwegians by Bill Lee 
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With the óstay-at-homeô order for 
Ontario now in place, the Galway 
Hall continues to remain closed 
to the public. There will be no 
events and no activities at the 
Hall during the month of Febru-
ary. It has been said that we con-
tinue to isolate now so that when 
we gather againé no one is 
missing. Letôs hold on to this 
thought and do our part to make 
wise choices during this global 
pandemic. Visit 
www.galwayhall.ca for monthly 
updates about the Galway Hall 
and for past articles of The Gal-
wegians. 
In the month of February, the 
Kinmount and Area Food Bank is 
open from 10 a.m. to 1 p.m. on 
Thursday the 11th and Thursday 
the 25th. Donations of food or 
money are always welcome on 
these dates. 
Although for the most part, 2020 
wasnôt a very positive or popular 
year, there were some upsides. 
The Galway and Area Wildlife 
Inventory had several new addi-
tions to its list- pine grosbeak, 
Saw Whet owl, northern oriole, 
northern cardinal, Imperial moth, 
and Polyphemus moth. Special 
thanks go out to everyone that 
continues to report their sight-
ings. 
There have been several sightings 
of barred owls recently. These 
owls have been seen along Al-
lenôs Alley, the Galway Road, 
and Clear Bay Road. It has been 
photographed by a few observers. 
The Barred owl is not a shy bird 
and is the only owl that has 
brown eyes. (All other 
owls have yellow eyes). 
The Cornell Labôs óAll 
About Birdsô site places 
the Barred Owlôs size 
between a crow and a 
goose. Its call is a very 
recognizable ñWho 
cooks for 
you?ò (hoohoo-
hoohoo). Talking of 
owls, I am reminded of 
an elementary school 
poem: There once was 
a bird who sat in a tree. 
   The 
more it saw, the less it 
spoke. 

   The less it 
spoke, the more it heard. 
   Why canôt we 
be like that wise, old bird? 
To date, 2021 has not been 
kind to our feathered friends 
that come to our birdfeeder. 
Two rose-breasted nuthatches, 
one blue jay and one chicka-
dee have met their demise by 
flying into our windows. An-
other observer reported a dead 
partridge near their deck, this 
time a victim of hitting their 
patio door. 
There are more chickadees 
around our feeder this year 
than ever before- almost twice 
as many. Has anyone else 
noted this as well? 
It would be interesting to 
know how the pioneers deter-
mined the start of the 100 
days of winter. I understand 
that it starts when the snow 
stays on the ground but con-
sider this season. On Decem-
ber 2nd, 2020, the snow was 
on the ground. With some 
mild weather, some of the snow 
disappeared but snow remained 
in the woods and in the shaded 
areas and has been with us ever 
since. Iôm wondering if all the 
ground has to be covered in 
snow. Using December 2nd as our 
start date, the 100th day would 
then be March 12th. We shall see. 
 
 The word for February that was 
added to the dictionary in 2020 is 
ñPuggleò. Puggle is a noun and is 
a dog breed created combining a 
pug and a beagle.  

A Puggle puppy 


